
 

 
 
 
March 22, 2018  
 
To: Members of the Historic Landmark Commission and Steve Sadowsky  
 
RE: 1404-1410 West Ninth Street, 905 Maufrais Street, including St. Philip’s Anglican 
Church 

(NRD-2017-0087, -0088, -0089, -0090, -0091) 
 

Dear Historic Landmark Commission Members,  
 
This is a unique case because of its scale, the historic integrity of the subject property within the 
surrounding area, and because of its location within a pending local historic district that this 
Commission recently voted to approve. In fact, the five properties that are proposed to undergo 
demolition are the bridge from the rest of the local historic district to West Austin Park, which 
the Commission itself decided to include in the LHD. 
 
We believe that action on the requested permits is premature. Because of the potential for 
irreparable harm to an area that it is clearly the Commission’s intent to preserve, we request a 
postponement of action on the release of demolition permits for these cases until the developer 
has presented detailed building plans for new construction to the Certificate of Appropriateness 
committee, the neighbors, and the HLC so that all stakeholders may have an opportunity to 
consider and comment on the impact that this new construction will have on our unique and 
historic street and neighborhood. This would be the largest scale demolition (in both square 
footage and number of demolished buildings) the West Line Historic District has seen in 
decades. We respectfully request that the HLC proceed with extreme caution and respect for the 
historic significance of this tract, and please consider all options for preserving the character of 
our community.  
 
 
Historical Significance of the Land and Buildings Subject to the Demolition Request 
 

A. Unique Character and Cultural Identity of the Neighborhood 
 
The properties lie directly at the center of a uniquely preserved area. Five of the seven buildings                 
are contributing to the West Line national register district, as are buildings on ​all adjacent lots.                
The properties are surrounded by at least five Austin historic landmark properties (1403 and              
1407 West 9​th Street across the street, and 1412, 1500, and 1502 West 9​th Street next door) and                  
West Austin Park adjacent. Because of this unique location it will forever change the character of                
West Austin Park and the core of Old West Austin if these historic structures are torn down and                  
replaced by a large, dominating modern building that would overshadow the park and             
surrounding Craftsman bungalows. 
 

4816-1768-1496.v1 



 

 
 
 

B. Culturally and Historically Valuable Landscape Features 
 
The 1.3-acre tract contains two architecturally significant outdoor tables built by members of the              
Maufrais family. The Maufrais family is the namesake of Maufrais Street, where the Maufrais              
family home was established in the early 1900’s and where several Maufrais children built              
homes on Maufrais Street between West 9​th Street and West 10​th Street. The Maufrais Brothers               
Concrete Contractors began providing concrete used in Austin buildings and landscapes in 1893,             
and the company was a prominent member of the Austin business community for most of the                
20​th century. Most of the sidewalks in the West Line Historic District are original Maufrais               
Brothers sidewalks and you will find the Maufrais name imprinted in the sidewalks on almost               
every street in the neighborhood. 
 
One lesser known contribution of the Maufrais family are the several concrete outdoor tables              
built by the Maufrais Brothers for the Maufrais family home and other homes on Maufrais and                
West 9​th Street. Two such tables are located on the tract sought to be demolished (one at 1410                  
West 9th Street and another at 1408 West 9th Street). These tables are both architecturally and                
historically significant given their connection to the Maufrais family and the unique design of the               
tables.  
 

C. Distinctive and Significant Architectural Style 
 

The land where these buildings are located are an especially historically significant part of the               
neighborhood. West Austin Park is one of the oldest parks in the city with a historic Tudor                 
Revival 1930 bath house designed by Hugo Kuehne. Preservation of the structures on this site,               
including the St. Philip’s Anglican Church, is critical to the integrity and historic character of the                
core of our neighborhood. Five of the seven buildings have Craftsman characteristics such as              
ornamental eave brackets and ornamental porches. These were built during a time period,             
1915-25, when artistic attention to detail was valued over mass production. The house at 1410               
W. 9​th features a more ornate Craftsman gable end and rafter tails. The back house at 1410 W. 9​th                   
is constructed with solid stone walls. It has a gabled roof and the non-stone walls are original                 
board and batten wood. 
 

D. Long-Standing Associations with Persons of Historic Importance 
 
Before the St. Philip’s Anglican Church became a church, it was the family home of the                
Randerson family from the 1920’s to the 1950’s. Irene Randerson received a B.S. in Chemistry               
from the University of Texas in 1928. She enjoyed a long career as a much-beloved teacher of                 
chemistry and geometry at Travis High School where she organized and sponsored the student              
council and won awards for her role as an extraordinary teacher. Her sister, Lucille Randerson               
Mayberry was also a prominent Austinite in her day. She and Irene worked tirelessly collecting               
and sewing clothes for needy families distributed through the Travis county Welfare Department             
and other state agencies. She also worked to help maintain stocks of food supplies for the                
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University of Texas Foreign Student Cupboard and spent her Thursday afternoons at the Austin              
State School sewing quilts. See attached articles and photos. 
 
 
Following the Ogden’s purchase of the West 9th Street properties, 1408 West 9th Street was               
converted to a church; the building and grounds were donated by Bob Ogden and Mary Ogden to                 
the congregation of the St. Francis Episcopal Church. When the church was later sold Mary               
Ogden re-purchased the property and donated it for use as a church a second time (as St.                 
Philip’s), contacting the current pastor and telling him that services there should resume. 
 
The pastor has testified that there is nowhere for his congregation to go should they lose the                 
church, and that the unique history of Mary Ogden’s gifting this property not once but twice                
makes it uniquely worthy of preservation. This history is memorialized on a plaque on the               
exterior of the church building. 
 
The Ogdens owned all of the properties in the 1.3-acre tract in addition to almost 300 other                 
properties in Austin, built iconic restaurants and bars in downtown Austin, and gave back to Old                
West Austin by building the El Arroyo restaurant, assembling the land, train depot and caboose               
for Donn’s Depot, and by supporting St. Philip’s Anglican Church. Mary was the valedictorian              
of her Austin High class in the 1940’s and went on to become one of the first female graduates of                    
the University of Texas Law School. 
 
Attached is the obituary for Mary Ogden, as well as a photo of the plaque on the outside wall of                    
the church. We understand from long-time residents that Mary herself lived for a time at 1406                
West 9th Street. The funeral services for both Bob and Mary Ogden occurred at the church. 
 
We respectfully request that you either (1) designate some or all of the properties in this tract as                  
historic landmarks due to the multiple points of significance detailed above, and/or (2) postpone              
action on these demolition permits by the 180 days allowed under the city code. 
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
Concerned Neighbors 
 
 
Molly and Bryan Bayerdorffer, 1502 West 9th Street 
 
Erin and Matt Thomson, 1412 West 9th Street 
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Maufrais table at 1410 W 9th St 

 

 
Maufrais table at 1408 W 9th St 
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Inscription from similar table at 906 Maufrais Street (adjacent to subject properties) 
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Obituary for Chuck Maufrais from Austin-American Statesman November 12, 1981 

4816-1768-1496.v1 



 

4816-1768-1496.v1 



 

    
U.T. Austin Yearbook “The Cactus” showing Hattie Irene Randerson’s graduation from the 
Department of Chemistry in 1928 

  
Travis High School Yearbook—1958 
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Lucille Randerson Mayberry with sons at Camp Mabry circa 1922 or 1923 
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Lucille Randerson Mayberry’s Volunteer of the Year 1974 
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